The Roseville Community Schools

AGREEMENT 2023 - 2025



TEAMSTERS LOCAL 214 ADMINISTRATIVE CLERICAL UNIT

BOARD OF EDUCATION

THERESA GENEST PRESIDENT

KEVIN SWITANOWSKI VICE PRESIDENT

JOSEPH D. DEFELICE SECRETARY

MATTHEW MCCARTNEY TREASURER

> GINA AIUTO TRUSTEE

DENISE BRUN TRUSTEE

MICHELLE WILLIAMS-WARD TRUSTEE

TABLE OF CONTENTS

ARTICLE NO.		PAGE
ARTICLE I	RECOGNITION	1
ARTICLE II	MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	1
ARTICLE III	UNION MEMBERSHIP	2
ARTICLE IV	SENIORITY	2
ARTICLE V	PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES	3
ARTICLE VI	VACANCIES, PROMOTIONS, TRANSFERS, REDUCTION AND RECALL	3
ARTICLE VII	DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND DISCHARGE	6
ARTICLE VIII	HOURS, OVERTIME AND WAGE CLAIMS	7
ARTICLE IX	PAID LEAVE	8
ARTICLE X	UNPAID LEAVE	10
ARTICLE XI	GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	12
ARTICLE XII	VACATION	13
ARTICLE XIII	HOLIDAYS	14
ARTICLE XIV	INSURANCE BENEFITS	15
ARTICLE XV	LONGEVITY	16
ARTICLE XVI	RETIREMENT	17
ARTICLE XVII	MISCELLANEOUS	17
ARTICLE XVIII	NO STRIKE-NO LOCK OUT	18
ARTICLE IXX ARTICLE XX	LAW SAVINGS CLAUSE EMERGENCY MANAGER	19 19
ARTICLE XXI	DURATION OF AGREEMENT	19
	SALARY SCHEDULE	20
	CAUSES FOR DISCIPLINARY ACTION	21

AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE BOARD OF EDUCATION

AND THE

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 214 ADMINISTRATIVE CLERICAL UNIT

This Agreement is entered into between the Roseville Community Schools, Macomb County, Roseville, Michigan, hereinafter referred to as the "District" and Administrative Clerical members of the Teamsters Local 214, hereinafter referred to as the "Union".

ARTICLE I RECOGNITION

Pursuant to and in accordance with the applicable provisions of Act 379 of the Public Acts of 1965 as amended, the Board of Education of the Roseville Community Schools recognizes the Union as the exclusive representative for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to wages, hours and conditions of employment for the term of this Agreement for all employees included in the bargaining unit as described.

The bargaining unit shall include all the following full-time and regular part-time Level I, Level II and Level III Administrative Assistants and shall exclude the Confidential Secretaries/Assistants to the Superintendent, Deputy Superintendent, and the Assistant Superintendents.

ARTICLE II MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The District on its own behalf and on behalf of the electors of the district, hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it by the laws and the Constitution of the State of Michigan, and of the United States, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the right:
 - (1) To the executive management and administrative control of the school system and its properties and facilities, and the activities of its employees.
 - (2) To hire all employees and, subject to the provisions of law, to determine their qualifications and the conditions for their continued employment, or their promotion, demotion or dismissal.
 - (3) To determine duties, responsibilities and assignments of Administrative secretarial and clerical staff.
- B. The exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties, and responsibilities by the District, the adoption of policies, rules, regulations and practices in furtherance thereof, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith shall be limited only to the specific and express terms thereof are in conformance with the Constitution and laws of the United States.
- C. When reorganizations or reductions are necessary, the District will give notice to the Union, before a change in duties is implemented, to provide an opportunity for employee input regarding the change.
- D. Temporary positions to be limited to 180 calendar days.

ARTICLE III UNION MEMBERSHIP

- A. Membership in the Union is not compulsory. All employees have the right to join, not join, maintain or drop their membership in the Union as they see fit. Neither party shall exert any pressure on or discriminate against any employee as regards such matters.
- B. The Board agrees that every employee in the bargaining unit shall have the right to organize, join and support the Union, provided that employees shall not engage in Union activities during working hours that distract from their duties except as it may be necessary to discuss a grievance in accordance with the procedure established.
- C. The Employer will not aid or promote any labor group or organization that purports to engage in collective bargaining on behalf of this unit or make any agreement with any group or organization for the purpose of undermining the Union.
- D. The Union and its members may use District building facilities at reasonable times and hours for meetings when such buildings are available and operating staffs are on duty. The request for building use must be made to the building administrator. The Union may post notices on any bulletin board ordinarily designed for the Union use.
- E. The Board agrees to furnish to the Union, in response to reasonable requests from time to time, available information concerning the financial resources of the District, and such other information as will assist the Union in developing intelligent, accurate, informed and constructive programs on behalf of the employees, together with information that may be necessary for the Union to process any grievance or complaint. However, nothing herein shall be construed to expand the provision in the Freedom of Information Act.
- F. If any provisions of this Article are invalid under Federal Law or the Laws of the State of Michigan, such provisions shall be modified to comply with the requirements of Federal and State law or shall be renegotiated for the purpose of adequate replacement. The Agreement shall also be guided by the Federal Wage Price Council directives and controls.

ARTICLE IV SENIORITY

- A. The following definitions shall apply.
 - (1) Hire date:
 - a. Date of hire as an employee in the school district, as approved by the Board of Education.
 - b. Date does not change
 - (2) Longevity date:
 - a. First date that employee is assigned to a position in the district that is eligible for longevity payment and/or vacation.
 - b. Basis of calculation for longevity payment or vacation.
 - (3) Union Seniority date
 - a. First date that employee is assigned to a position in the bargaining unit.
 - b. Date will be adjusted based on periods when seniority does not accrue.

ARTICLE IV – SENIORITY (continued)

- B. Union seniority shall be determined:
 - (1) As clerical employees within the administrative unit.
 - (2) Within each classification.
 - (3) Without regard for full or part-time status
- C. Union seniority shall be effective following satisfactory completion of the probationary period and shall date from the first day of hire.
- D. A copy of the seniority list shall be provided to the Union Steward annually by August 1 or any time a change is made to it.
- E. An employee shall lose Union seniority and her/his employment shall be terminated for any of the following reasons:
 - (1) Resignation
 - (2) Discharge, when discharge is not reversed through the grievance procedure as set forth in Article X.
 - (3) The employee is absent three (3) consecutive working days without notification to the District. Extenuating circumstances will be considered.
 - (4) Failure to return within time specified under a recall.
 - (5) Failure to return from a leave of absence. Union seniority will be lost and employment may be terminated for failure to request leave for any non-compensation days.
 - (6) Retirement.

ARTICLE V PROBATIONARY EMPLOYEES

- A. New employees hired into the unit shall be considered as probationary employees for the first one hundred and eighty (180) calendar days of their employment.
- B. Probationary employees shall be eligible to receive fringe benefits including hospitalization insurance, life insurance, and paid sick, personal or funeral days during their probationary period.
- C. Upon completion of the probationary period, the new employee shall be entered on the Union seniority list and shall rank for Union seniority from the first day of hire.
- D. Probationary employees may be represented by the Union for the purpose of collective bargaining in respect to wages, hours and conditions of employment as set forth in this Agreement but shall not be represented by the Union for any action taken by the Employer in regard to discharge or discipline except as the discharge or discipline may be related to the probationary employee's activities within the Union.

ARTICLE VI VACANCIES, PROMOTIONS, TRANSFERS, REDUCTION AND RECALL

- A. Vacancies
 - (1) In the event that a new classification or position is established and mutual agreement is reached that the position falls within the scope of this bargaining unit, the parties shall meet within a fifteen (15) working day period to establish a wage rate appropriate to the position.

ARTICLE VI – VACANCIES (continued)

- (2) In the event a vacancy exists or a new position is created that falls within the bargaining unit, employees shall be given an opportunity to bid for the position on the basis of Union seniority and qualifications.
- (3) Transfers shall be made before promotions or demotions are granted.
- (4) Vacancies shall be posted for a period of not less than five (5) working days, at which time the posting will be closed. Copies of the posting shall be provided for the Steward of the Union and for each member of the unit. The employer reserves the right to refuse lateral transfer requests. If denied a lateral transfer, the employee will be informed in writing the reason for refusal.
- (5) Employees interested in the vacancy shall indicate their interest in writing within the posted bid period if they wish to be considered.
- (6) Leave of absence due to illness or maternity leave may be filled by a temporary employee for the first thirty (30) day period. After a thirty (30) day period, the position will be filled by a new employee without bid. Should the employee on leave of absence not return at the expiration of the leave, the position will be filled through the bidding procedure.
- (7) A member of the bargaining unit who plans to bid on a vacant position shall first inform her/his current immediate supervisor.
- B. <u>Promotions</u>
 - (1) In the event employees bid for a promotion/demotion within the unit, the Employer agrees to give due weight to the background, attainments, skills, and the Union seniority of all applicants. An applicant with less Union seniority shall not be awarded a promotion/demotion unless qualifications are superior to more senior applicants.
 - (2) Notice of the appointment to a vacancy will be furnished to all employees who made application at the same time that the appointment is awarded. A copy of the appointment letter will be furnished to the Union steward(s).
 - (3) An employee promoted shall be allowed a thirty (30) day trial period to demonstrate the ability to satisfactorily meet the standards and perform the duties of the position.

The trial period may be extended up to an additional thirty (30) days if mutually agreed by the employer and the Union. Should the employee's supervisor determine that he/she cannot perform the duties satisfactorily or should the employee elect to leave the assignment during this period, he/she shall be restored to the position from which he/she made the bid. Should the employee return to her/his previous position under this section, adjustments will be made with all persons involved in such action to return each to her/his prior position.

(4) An employee who is awarded a voluntary demotion shall be allowed a thirty (30) day trial period in the assignment. The resulting vacancy will not be posted or filled until the thirty (30) day period has expired. Should the employee's supervisor determine that he/she cannot perform the duties satisfactorily or should the employee elect to leave the assignment during this period, he/she shall be restored to the position from which he/she made the bid.

ARTICLE VI – PROMOTIONS (continued)

- (5) An employee will move forward on the salary schedule one step after each full year of active employment in the assignment.
- (6) Whenever an employee is promoted or reclassified upward, the employee will be placed on the step of the salary scale providing a minimum increase of forty-three cents per hour or will be placed at the maximum of the new scale whichever is lesser.

Consideration will be given to insure that the employee does not earn less money after the promotion than she/he would have received through step increments prior to the promotion.

- (7) If denied a promotion, the employee will be informed of the reason in writing.
- C. Involuntary Transfers
 - (1) Employees may be transferred within their classification as necessary to maintain the effectiveness of the operation.
 - (2) Transfers will be discussed with the employee prior to any action being taken. Notice of transfer shall be in writing and a copy provided to the Union Steward(s).
 - (3) Rotation of employees during vacation periods or during short-term absences shall not be considered a transfer and may be done at the discretion of the employer.
 - (4) Rotation of employees during vacation schedules or short-term absences shall not cause a decrease in the employee's rate of pay. An employee temporarily transferred to a lower classification because of an extended absence shall not suffer a reduction in pay.
 - (5) An employee temporarily transferred to a higher classification requiring additional responsibility for a period in excess of one (1) calendar day shall be paid at the beginning step of the higher scale that provides a minimum of forty-three (\$.43) cents per hour for the duration of this contract.
 - (6) An employee transferred or promoted by the Employer to a position not included in the unit, and thereafter transferred to a position within the unit shall have accumulated Union seniority while working in the position to which he/she was transferred. Employees transferred under these circumstances shall retain all rights accrued for the purpose of any benefits provided for in the Agreement.
- D. <u>Reduction of Staff</u>
 - (1) Reduction of the clerical staff shall be accomplished through layoff.
 - (2) Should layoff be necessary, the following procedure shall apply:
 - (a) All temporary employees will be released before any other reduction in staff.
 - (b) All new probationary employees in the classification to be reduced shall be terminated by Union seniority before any Union seniority employee in the same classification is laid off.
 - (c) Seniority employees whose classification is to be reduced shall be laid off based on Union seniority and qualifications after removal of new probationary employees.

ARTICLE VI – REDUCTION OF STAFF (continued)

- (d) A senior employee may bump a less senior employee in the same classification, lower classification, or in a classification that they previously held successfully provided the employee has the necessary qualifications. In addition the employer must be notified of their intent to bump within seven (7) calendar days following receipt of the layoff/reduction notice.
- Any employee to be reduced or laid off may take the test(s) necessary in order to qualify for positions held by less senior employees at the same level or lower level classification. Employees must qualify within fourteen (14) calendar days of receiving layoff/reduction notice in order to exercise their bumping rights. The Employer will make the required tests available and testing arrangements will be by mutual agreement between the employer, Union and employee. Each test required for the position can only be taken once during this fourteen (14) day period.
 - (e) Employees to be laid off shall be given fourteen (14) calendar days notice prior to layoff.
- E. <u>Recall after Layoff</u>
 - (1) When the work force is increased after layoff, employees will be recalled within classification according to their Union seniority and qualifications for the position.
 - (2) Notice of recall shall be sent to the employee's last known address by first class mail and certified mail. If an employee fails to report for work within ten (10) days from date of mailing of notice of recall, the employee shall lose all Union seniority and be considered to have resigned. The Employer agrees to furnish the Union with a copy of the recall notice at the time of mailing.
 - (3) Employees shall be eligible for recall for a period equal to their Union seniority at the time of layoff or two years, whichever is a shorter period of time.

ARTICLE VII DISCIPLINARY ACTION AND DISCHARGE

A. Disciplinary action shall be defined as any action by the Employer including one or more of the following:

Oral reprimand, written reprimand, suspension, demotion or discharge or place on probation.

Employees placed on probation as disciplinary action shall be entitled to sick, personal and funeral days and shall accumulate sick days and shall be paid for holidays during their disciplinary probationary period.

- B. Disciplinary action may be imposed for failure to fulfill the responsibilities as an employee.
- C. The Union shall be notified that some disciplinary action has been taken immediately following notification to the employee.

- D. A list of some actions that may result in discharge, suspension, demotion or other disciplinary action is enclosed with a copy of this Agreement. Such list shall be considered a partial listing only and shall not be deemed to limit the Employer as to cause for disciplinary action.
- E. In the event of disagreement over the action to suspend, demote or discharge, the employee may initiate a grievance at Step 2 of the grievance procedure.

ARTICLE VIII HOURS, OVERTIME AND WAGE CLAIMS

A. Hours

- (1) The normal workday shall be seven and one-half (7 1/2) hours per day with a one
 (1) hour unpaid lunch period.
- (2) The normal workweek shall be five (5) days, Monday through Friday.
- B. <u>Schedules</u>
 - (1) Work schedules may vary from department to department and shall be determined by the supervisor.
 - (2) Employees shall be provided a fifteen (15) minute relief break in the morning and afternoon schedules.
- C. <u>Wage Claim</u>
 - (1) No claim for back wages shall exceed the amount of wages the employee would otherwise have earned at the regular rate.
- D. <u>Overtime</u>
 - (1) Overtime for all employees will be paid at the rate of time and one-half (1 1/2) for all hours in excess of seven and one-half (7 1/2) hours per day or seven (7) hours worked during the summer schedule.
 - (2) Time and one-half will be paid for all hours worked on Saturday. Double time rate will be paid for holidays and Sunday work unless otherwise noted herein.
 - (3) The following procedure shall be used for selection of bargaining unit members for overtime opportunities that are offered to the total bargaining unit:
 - a) The Assistant Superintendent/Designee will contact the Union when overtime is available. The overtime list will be maintained by the Union, which will furnish the name(s) of members who will work the overtime to the Assistant Superintendent in a timely manner.
 - b) Overtime opportunities that are made available to the total bargaining unit will be filled using the Union seniority list. The cycle will begin with the most senior member. As each overtime opportunity arises, it will be offered to the next senior member, continuing down the list until each member has had the opportunity to work. The cycle is then repeated by going back to the top of the Union seniority list.
 - c) Employees who refuse an overtime opportunity will continue to be offered the next available overtime opportunity until they accept and work an overtime shift.
 - d) An employee will be credited with an overtime opportunity worked regardless of the number of hours actually worked.

- E. <u>Summer Hours</u>
 - (1) Summer work shall be seven (7) hours per day, Monday through Friday, thirtyfive (35) hours per week. Summer hours will begin the Monday following the close of the school year in June. Regular hours shall commence one week prior to the scheduled opening of school in the fall.
 - (2) It is agreed that on any extended school holiday for two (2) or more school days in which classes are not in session and/or midwinter break and Records Day or K-12 In-Service days, summer hours will prevail.

On Records or In-service days when school staff are in the building, employees will maintain regular work hours and will be granted $\frac{1}{2}$ hour of compensatory time to be utilized at a later date and scheduled with the agreement of the supervisor.

ARTICLE IX PAID LEAVE

- A. Sick Leave
 - (1) Employees will be granted one (1) sick leave day per month.
 - (Proration for ten and ten and one-half month employees will be based on the number of months scheduled. Pro-ration for part-time twelve-month employees will be based on the number of days scheduled to work per week.) Such earned time will be credited to each employee's individual bank at the beginning of each month; but an employee shall not earn sick leave following any month in which the employee did not receive pay for more than one-half the scheduled working days in that month.
 - (2) An employee absent from duty as a result of personal illness or accident may use sick days up to the full accumulation of the individual bank. Absences greater than 90 calendar days will be governed by the contract language regarding Long Term Disability Insurance.
 - (3) An employee may use days from her/his individual bank for absence due to illness or injury in the immediate family as defined in Article X, C - Funeral Leave. Such absence shall be limited to the amount essential to provide initial care and to make arrangements for continued care if such is required.
 - (4) An employee absent for eight (8) consecutive working days or more, or absent due to a serious or contagious illness, shall provide a physician's statement certifying recovery and the employee's ability to return to full employment before returning to work.
- B. <u>Personal Leave Days</u>
 - (1) During each year, four (4) days of the annual sick leave allowance may be used for personal business. For those members who are assigned a position in the unit after July 1, 1986, personal business days may be used only for urgent personal business that only can be conducted during regular working hours.
 - (2) Personal leave must be requested, in writing, at least one (1) week in advance of its intended use. The specific reason for the personal business leave need not be included in the written request.

ARTICLE IX PAID LEAVE (continued)

- (3) Personal leave days may be used on the day before or after a holiday with the prior approval of the immediate supervisor and the Personnel Office. The time limit set forth in B2 may be waived in extenuating circumstances. If personal business leave is requested in conjunction with holidays, or less than a week in advance the specific reason must be provided.
- C. <u>Funeral Leave</u>
 - (1) An employee shall be allowed up to five (5) working days as funeral leave in the event of death in the immediate family of the employee. The immediate family shall be defined as spouse, father, mother, grandfather, grandmother, grandchildren, brother, sister, son or daughter and the corresponding in-laws of the employee.
 - (2) An employee may be granted up to the five (5) days indicated in (1) to attend the funeral of a relative or friend not listed as immediate family upon application to and approval by the Assistant Superintendent for Personnel. Indication or evidence of a close relationship over an extended period will be expected.
 - (3) The employee shall inform his immediate supervisor of his need to be absent for funeral leave, in advance, if at all possible. The notification shall include the name of the deceased, the relationship and the length of the absence expected.
 - (4) Funeral days used in accordance with the above shall not be charged against an employee's individual sick leave bank, or as personal leave. Funeral days shall not accumulate.
- D. Injury on the Job

An employee who is absent due to injury or disease compensable under Michigan Workers' Compensation Act shall receive from the District the difference between the allowance provided under the Act and the regular net pay for the duration of the compensable absence with no subtraction of sick leave days for the number of days in the employees sick bank up to a maximum period of one (1) year.

- E. Jury Duty and Court Subpoena
 - (1) An employee called for jury duty shall be paid the difference between her/his regular wages and her/his compensation for jury duty.
 - (2) The employee will report for work when not actually serving on jury duty.
 - (3) Days served on jury duty shall not be charged to the employee's individual sick bank.
 - (4) Employees subpoenaed into court to give testimony relating directly to their employment shall be paid full salary, less the amount paid for the witness fee, and shall not have the days charged to their individual sick bank.

ARTICLE IX – PAID LEAVE (continued)

F. Each employee may qualify for additional vacation days or additional pay according to the following programs:

For each thirteen (13) consecutive weeks without an absence for which s/he could be charged a deduction from her/his sick bank or without an absence for which s/he could use and unpaid absence the employee will earn the choice of an extra vacation day or One Hundred Eighty Five Dollars (\$185) for each period.

ARTICLE X UNPAID LEAVE

A. Sick Leave

- (1) An employee whose personal illness or injury extends beyond the period compensated for in Article X hereof shall be granted a formal leave of absence, without pay, for such time as is necessary for complete recovery from such illness or injury. Said absence from duty shall not exceed one (1) year. It is understood that the employee may renew her/his request for leave if additional time is needed. It is further understood that the leave may be initiated by the Board of Education.
- (2) No seniority shall continue to accrue during leave of absence due to illness or injury unless the time has been designated as a Family Medical Leave Act (FMLA) leave. Should the employee return to duty within one (1) year, he/she shall be assigned to the same position that he/she held prior to the leave if such position still exists.

If the position has been eliminated, the least senior employee in the same classification and with same qualifications, may be laid off to provide a work station for the more senior returning employee. If there is no one less senior in the classification, the employee may exercise her/his bumping rights as outlined in Article VII, D.

- (3) If the leave should be extended beyond one year, the employee shall be assigned to the first vacant position that occurs for which he/she is qualified.
- (4) Employees on leave of absence may be eligible for self-paid group health insurance coverage under the provision of the Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986. (COBRA)

Hospitalization and life insurance coverage shall be maintained for an employee on leave of absence due to illness for a period not to exceed one (1) year. Life insurance coverage may be extended for up to one (1) additional year at the expense of the employee provided a leave extension is granted.

ARTICLE X – UNPAID LEAVE (continued)

- B. Personal Leave
 - (1) Leaves requested for reason other than disability and sick leave shall be known as personal leave, and may be renewed every six (6) months not to exceed two (2) years. Formal approval is required for such leaves and must be obtained as much in advance as possible. This leave shall be without pay and without accumulation of Union seniority. Formal approval must be obtained as much in advance as possible for this leave. The employee returning from an approved leave under this section shall have the right to return to work if and when an opening does occur in the bargaining unit. Refusal to return when recalled shall be considered as abandoning the position and the employee shall lose all Union seniority and be terminated from employment.
 - (2) <u>Short Term Leave</u>
 - (a) Short term consent leaves, without pay, but with continuing fringe benefits and continuing Union seniority accrual, may be granted at the option of the Employer for periods of not less than five (5) or more than thirty (30) working days. When granted, specific leave dates shall be established. Employees granted such leave shall be required to report for duty upon the termination of the leave.
 - (b) The employer reserves the right to deny approval of such short- term consent leaves within a classification if it will adversely affect the normal operations of the building.
 - (c) Employees returning from short-term consent leaves shall return to the same position they held prior to the leave.
- C. <u>Military Leave</u>
 - (1) Any regular employee who may enter the defense forces of the United States for service or training, shall make application for military leave and shall, upon return, be reinstated to the first vacancy in this Unit with full credit including the annual wage schedule increment. Such applicants must show proof that he/she can completely qualify for said position. The District shall make every effort to rehire any partially disabled veterans who left their employ for service in the Armed Forces.
 - (2) Said application for reinstatement shall be made not later than ninety (90) days from the date of release or discharge.

ARTICLE XI GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. The District agrees to recognize the Steward of the Local Union and/or the designated representative of the Union in processing grievances as the occasion may arise.

B. <u>Definition of a Grievance</u>

A claim by an employee, group of employees or the Union that there has been a violation, misapplication or misinterpretation of the terms of the Agreement shall be deemed a grievance under this contract and will be subject to the grievance procedure as provided herein.

C. <u>Grievance Procedure</u>

<u>Step 1</u>

The employee with a grievance or the representative of the Union shall first discuss the matter with the immediate supervisor directly with the object of resolving the matter informally. The immediate supervisor shall submit a written response to the employee within five (5) working days.

Step 2

In the event that the employee is not satisfied with the disposition of the grievance at Step 1, the employee may, within five (5) working days file a written statement of grievance with the Assistant Superintendent who shall respond in writing to the grievance within five (5) working days following the receipt of same.

The written statement of grievance shall contain:

- a. The name of the aggrieved employee or employees.
- b. The description of the act giving rise to the grievance.
- c. The section or sections of the Agreement allegedly violated.
- d. The action requested to remedy the grievance.

<u>Step 3</u>

If the response of the Assistant Superintendent is not satisfactory to the employee, the Union may within five (5) days after receipt of the response from the Assistant Superintendent appeal the written grievance to the Superintendent and a meeting shall be arranged within five (5) days to discuss the grievance.

The Superintendent shall provide a written response to the grievance within five (5) days.

Step 4

The Teamster's Grievance Panel shall review each grievance and determine whether or not the grievance will be processed for arbitration. The Teamster Grievance Panel shall inform the Superintendent's designee as to whether the grievance shall proceed to arbitration.

ARTICLE XI – GREVANCE PROCEDURE (continued)

Step 5 Arbitration

- 1. If the dispute remains unresolved after completion of the foregoing procedure, the Union may, within forty-five (45) days after receipt of the Employer's response at Step 3 with a written notice to the Employer, submit the grievance to an impartial arbitrator selected from the American Arbitration Association, or Federal Mediation and Conciliation Service under and in accordance with the rules of said Association.
- 2. The decision of the arbitrator shall be binding on both parties.
- 3. The arbitrator shall have no power or authority to add to, delete from, alter or modify the terms of this Agreement, nor shall he have the power to substitute his judgment for the judgment of the Board.
- 4. The arbitrator shall be requested to submit his decision on the matter within thirty (30) calendar days after conclusion of the hearing.
- 5. The fees of the American Arbitration Association and of the arbitrator shall be shared equally by both parties. All other expenses shall be borne by the party incurring the expenses.

ARTICLE XII VACATION

- A. Vacation schedules must be approved in advance by the immediate supervisor and the Personnel Office.
- B. Vacation will be earned between July 1 and June 30 and will be credited to employee's bank on the July 1 immediately following the period in which it was earned.

Step increments will be based on longevity date.

In the event an employee is on a non-compensated absence for more than one half (1/2) the month, vacation will be pro-rated. Future vacation calculations will continue to be based on longevity date and earned between July 1 and June 30.

- C. The vacation allowance for twelve-month employees shall be as follows:
 - (1) During the first 12 months of service, employees will be granted three (3) vacation days prorated based on start date. (Example: January 3rd start 1.5 days)
 - (2) Employees with less than twelve months (12) of service, based on longevity date, shall earn prorated vacation to be credited the following July 1.
 - (3) After the first 90 days of employment, upon special request, an employee may draw up to two (2) vacation days that will be deducted from their earned prorated vacation before being credited to employee's bank the following July 1.
 - (4) Employees with at least twelve (12) months of service by June 30, based on the longevity date, shall earn two (2) weeks of vacation.
 - (5) Employees with at least five (5) years of service by June 30, based on the longevity date shall earn three (3) weeks of vacation.
 - (6) Employees with at least ten (10) years of service by June 30, based on longevity date, shall earn three (3) weeks plus two (2) days of vacation.
 - (7) Employees with at least fifteen (15) years of service by June 30, based on longevity date, shall earn four (4) weeks of vacation.

ARTICLE XII - VACATION (continued)

- D. Upon death, retirement, resignation with 20 working days' notice, or layoff, earned vacation pay accrued shall be paid to the employee or to the estate of the employee at a prorated rate based on time worked.
- E. Employees shall receive their current rate of pay based on straight time regular earnings for a vacation period.

Ten-month employees shall earn vacation at the rate of 5/6 of a day per month from the date of seasonal return until their last scheduled day worked in a school year. The vacation accumulation shall be based on the schedule found in Article XIII for twelve-month employees, e.g., employees with 1-5 years of continuous service would earn 5/6 of 10 days accumulated vacation. All other vacation provisions shall apply to 10-month employees.

Part-time twelve (12) month employees shall earn pro-rated vacation based on their regular weekly work schedule. The vacation accumulation shall be based on the schedule found in Article XIII for twelve-month employees, e.g. employees with 1-5 years continuous service and a three (3) day per week work schedule would earn sixty percent (60%) of 10 days accumulated vacation. All other vacation provisions shall apply to part-time twelve (12) month employees.

F. Three (3) vacation days may be carried over each year.

ARTICLE XIII HOLIDAYS

- A. All employees in the unit shall be entitled to the following holidays with pay provided they would normally be scheduled to work on the day stated:
 - Independence Day (July 4)
 - Labor Day
 - Thanksgiving Day
 - Day after Thanksgiving
 - Day before Christmas
 - Christmas Day
 - Day before New Years
 - New Year's Day
 - Two days during spring school recess, established when district calendar is set
 - Memorial Day
- B. Should any of the above listed holidays fall on a Saturday, Friday, the day preceding shall be the recognized holiday. Should any of the above holidays fall on a Sunday, Monday, the day following shall be the recognized holiday.
- C. Should schools be open on one or more of the holidays listed above, employees shall work at regular pay rates and shall be allowed compensatory time off at another date.
- D. An employee must work on the last day preceding a holiday and the first work day after a holiday unless on an approved leave for personal reasons or on a valid sick leave absence in order to receive pay for the holiday.

ARTICLE XIV INSURANCE BENEFITS

The District will provide the following benefits to all members of the bargaining unit.

Part time twelve (12) month employees will receive a pro-ration of benefits based on their regular work schedule. Those benefits requiring a premium payment must be paid by the employee on a pro-rata basis for the employer to be obligated to pay its share.

A. Life Insurance

The District shall provide life insurance of \$30,000 through a group plan for all employees.

- B. <u>Hospitalization</u> Health/Medical
 - 1. Effective August 1, 2010, the Board will offer full family coverage for medical, surgical and hospitalization insurance with benefits comparable to or better than the Blue Cross Community Blue Option 3 in place at that time.
 - 2. Effective 07/01/2021 all new employees are offered <u>only</u> the High Deductible Health Plan with Health Savings Account (HSA). Contribution guidelines listed below apply to all employees enrolled in the High Deductible Health Plan with Health Savings Account (HSA).
 - a. In the first year of enrollment the district will make a one-time contribution -\$750 single, \$1,000 couple, \$1,250 family
 - b. The contribution shall be prorated based on hire date.
 - c. After the first year of enrollment \$650 single / \$850 couple-family will be deposited in the HSA annually in January.
 - d. 80/20 rules apply employees must contribute at least 20% annually (Example: \$125 minimum employee contribution to \$500 district contribution)
 - e. Based on a January 1st Enrollment
 - f. Local-214 and District agree to work on details to address turnover and impact on HSA funds.
 - 3. Effective October 1, 2011, bargaining unit members receiving medical/hospitalization benefits will be responsible for a monthly contribution equivalent to 20% of the current illustrative rate for their level of coverage.
- C. Disability Insurance
 - The Board shall provide a long-term group disability policy for each member. The terms of the policy shall provide that eligibility shall begin after ninety (90) calendar days of disability.
 - Individual sick bank accumulations will be frozen from the 91st day of disability until the member returns or retires. Members who retire on disability will be eligible for the severance payment based on the formula and their frozen accumulation of sick leave
 - All terms and conditions of the policy shall prevail, subject to the rules and regulations of the carrier.

ARTICLE XIV – INSURANCE BENEFITS (continued)

D. Dental Care Program

The District shall provide dental insurance for employees and their families. The plan will provide benefits with maximum limits as defined in the 2000-2021 plan.

E. Optical Insurance

The District shall provide optical insurance for employees and their families. The optical coverage shall be no less than the following every 24 months: \$100.00 for contacts, \$50.00 for frames, \$40.00 regular lenses, \$72.00 bifocal lenses, \$92.00 trifocal lenses, \$100.00 lenticular lenses, and \$30.00 eye examinations.

F. <u>COBRA</u>

The Consolidated Omnibus Budget Reconciliation Act of 1986 (COBRA) may provide self-paid group health benefit coverage for specified amounts of time to the following:

-Surviving dependents of deceased employee

-Spouses of employees after divorce or separation

-Medicare ineligible spouses and dependents of current employees

-Children who no longer meet the groups eligibility requirements.

-Employees who no longer meet the group's eligibility requirements due to termination (other than gross misconduct), reduction in hours or layoff.

G. <u>Cafeteria Benefits</u>

The District will provide the Cafeteria Plan it offers the teachers.

ARTICLE XV LONGEVITY

- A. Longevity payments will be waived for 2013/2014 and 2014/2015
- B. Longevity pay shall be earned by all employees in the unit. Calculation will be based on years of service from the longevity date to December 31 of the year of payment. Payments shall be made according to the following schedule:

5 years or more by December 31	1,550
10 years or more by December 31	1,900
15 years or more by December 31	2,200
20 years or more by December 31	2,500

- C. Longevity payments shall be made on the first payday in December.
- D. Upon layoff, retirement or death, prorated payment shall be made with the final check.
- E. All employees regularly scheduled to work will receive full longevity unless a proration occurs as a result of non-compensated absences that exceed one half of the scheduled work days in a month.

ARTICLE XVI RETIREMENT

- A. An employee may retire in accordance with conditions set forth in the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement Act.
- B. Upon submission of proof of retirement through the provisions of the Michigan Public School Employees Retirement Act, an employee shall receive a severance payment in the amount of 50% of the first 70 accumulated sick leave days in their individual bank, plus 20% of any additional sick leave accumulation ranging from 71 - 221 days. Based on this formula, maximum severance shall not exceed payment for 65 days.

In the event of the death of an employee, the above described severance payment shall be paid to the estate of the employee or her/his named beneficiary at the same rate and under the same conditions as would accrue upon retirement.

- Retirement Severance Individuals actively employed in September 2011 will receive 5 days pay at retirement.
 Individuals actively employed for the 2013/2014 school year will receive an additional 5 days pay at retirement.
- D. Article XVI, Items B & C will be based on the employee's current daily rate or their then daily rate as identified on the 2013-2016 Salary Schedule, page 20, whichever is greater.

ARTICLE XVII MISCELLANEOUS

- A. An employee shall be provided a copy of any evaluation report or disciplinary report that is to become a part of the employee's permanent personnel file.
- Employees shall have the right to review their individual personnel file at a reasonable time. Confidential materials, such as reference reports or other confidential items may be removed before the employee examines the file.
 Employees may request to remove from their personnel files unfavorable anecdotal reports three (3) or more years old and all non-district materials.
- C. Employees may request payroll deduction for Credit Union, Savings Bonds, United Way, and tax sheltered annuities.
- D. The Chief Steward and Alternate Steward of the Union may attend a function of the International Union such as a conference or convention, and shall be allowed time off, without loss of pay provided that such leave shall not exceed five (5) days per year. The Chief Steward and Alternate Steward attending under this provision shall be certified by the Local Steward.
- E. <u>Mileage Payments</u> Employees required to use their own automobile on official school business shall be reimbursed at a rate equivalent to that adopted by the School District Board upon submission of proper forms approved by their immediate supervisor.
- F. Union building representatives and Union officers shall be permitted use of office equipment. Materials used shall be limited to Local Union business.

ARTICLE XVII - MISCELLANEOUS (continued)

- G. (1) On the first six (6) inclement weather days when the district is closed, employees not required to work need not report to work and will not be pay deducted or have a day deducted from their leave bank.
 - (2) When the district is closed due to inclement weather beyond the six (6) days forgiven by the State of Michigan, all employees are required to work their regular shift or be charged vacation, personal leave or compensatory time. If no such leave remains in the employee bank it shall be adjusted as pay-deduct.
 - (3) When an employee works on an inclement weather closure day that is forgiven by the State of Michigan, they will be permitted compensatory time off at a time mutually agreed between the employee and the immediate supervisor. This compensatory time may also be applied to #2 above.
- H. The employer will reimburse an employee for tuition and books upon successful completion of an appropriate course approved by the employer; the approval must be granted prior to the course being taken and proof of payment must be provided to the Business Office. An employee who terminates employment within 12 months of completion of a course shall reimburse the employer for the aforementioned costs.
- I. The Employer will provide in-service and staff meetings on appropriate subjects; staff members may suggest topics of a general nature or specific departmental concerns.
- J. Job Sharing The Board supports the concept of job sharing and will make every reasonable effort to accommodate an employee interested in a job sharing position.
- K. The Board supports the concept of flexible working hours and will consider requests from individual employees. Such requests may not interfere with the efficient operation of the department involved. All flexible schedules in one office must provide for coverage of that office for the normal business hours, as established by the Board of Education which is currently 8:00 a.m. to 4:30 p.m. with summer hours, 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m. No schedule may start earlier than one half hour prior to the established starting time. Any such arrangements may be discontinued by the unilateral decision of the employee or Board.
- L. The employer will make tests of qualifications available a minimum of twice per year.
- M. Employees may be required to take a physical examination to determine their ability to perform their duties.

ARTICLE XVIII NO STRIKE--NO LOCK OUT

- A. The Union agrees that no work stoppage will be voted, condoned, authorized or undertaken by its members during the term of this Agreement, and that any employee engaging in a concerted work stoppage, authorized or unauthorized, will be subject to some disciplinary action.
- B. The Board agrees to abide by the law in regard to lockouts.

ARTICLE XIX LAW SAVINGS CLAUSE

In the event that any of the terms, conditions or provisions of this Agreement should be rendered or declared invalid by reasons of existing or subsequently enacted legislation, or by any degree of a court of competent jurisdiction, such provisions shall remain in full effect. A special conference may be called to discuss the provisions declared or rendered invalid.

ARTICLE XX EMERGENCY MANAGER

The following language is inserted pursuant to Act No. 9 of the Public Acts of 2011, and is not the result of mutual agreement on the provision by the parties: This entire agreement or specific provisions of this agreement may be rejected, modified, or terminated by an emergency financial manager under conditions provided in the Local Government and School District Fiscal Accountability Act, 2011 PA 4. By signing this agreement the Union does not agree or acknowledge that this provision is binding on either the Employer or the Union. In addition, the Union reserves the right to assert, where appropriate, that this clause is not enforceable.

DURATION OF AGREEMENT

- A. This Agreement shall continue in full force and effect from the date ratified by the Union and approved by the Board through June 30, 2026 when it shall terminate.
 One limited item may be opened during this contract: Article XIV, Item B-2 - Medical Benefits..
- B. Should either party wish to extend or modify this Agreement, they shall give the other party written notice to that effect not less than sixty (60) days nor more than ninety (90) days prior to its expiration date.
- C. This Agreement shall supersede any rules, regulations, or practices that are contrary to or inconsistent with its terms.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed on the day and year noted below:

ROSEVILLE COMMUNITY SCHOOLS

TEAMSTERS LOCAL 214 ADMINISTRATIVE CLERICAL UNIT

Mark Blaszkowski Superintendent Amy Roddy, Representative Teamsters Local 214

Peter Hedemark Assistant Superintendent Human Resources Debra Lesperance Steward

Date

SALARY SCHEDULE

2023/2024

STEP	Level I	Level II	Level III
1	22.82	22.08	20.85
2	23.38	22.60	21.29
3	23.95	23.09	21.73
4	24.49	23.59	22.19
5	25.05	24.08	22.63
6	25.61	24.60	23.07

2024/2025

STEP	Level I	Level II	Level III
1	23.50	22.74	21.48
2	24.08	23.28	21.93
3	24.67	23.78	22.38
4	25.22	24.30	22.86
5	25.80	24.80	23.31
6	26.38	25.34	23.76

2025/2026

STEP	Level I	Level II	Level III
1	24.21	23.42	22.12
2	24.80	23.98	22.59
3	25.41	24.49	23.05
4	25.98	25.03	23.55
5	26.57	25.54	24.01
6	27.17	26.10	24.47

SALARY STIPENDS

Individuals whose primary job responsibility includes one of the functions listed below will receive a salary stipend of fifty cents (.50) per hour. If duties are reassigned or redistributed so as to alter the major responsibility of the position, the stipend will be re-evaluated and may be discontinued.

Child Accounting	State/Federal Grants
Employee Benefits	Senior Bookkeeper
Payroll	Substitute Caller
Purchasing	Technical Support-Curriculum

Educational Stipends:

Associates Degree (related field)	\$0.50/hour
Bachelors Degree	\$1.00/hour
Masters Degree	\$1.50/hour

Employees receiving a \$0.10/hour stipend for an associate's degree in an unrelated field, as of June 30, 2006, will continue to receive the stipend.

CAUSES FOR DISCIPLINARY ACTION

Among the following, are some grounds for disciplinary actions and/or discharge:

- 1. Has been convicted of a felony or a misdemeanor involving moral turpitude.
- 2. Has willfully disobeyed any official regulation or order or has failed to obey any proper direction made and given by her/his immediate supervisor.
- 3. Has been under the influence of intoxicants while on duty.
- 4. Has been guilty of insubordination or of disgraceful conduct when such occurred while on duty.
- 5. The employee is negligent or is guilty of gross neglect in the performance of her/his duties.
- 6. Is offensive in her/his conduct or language in public or to employees while on duty.
- 7. Is careless or negligent with monies or other property of the school district.
- 8. Has failed to pay or make reasonable provision for future payment of her/his debts to such an extent that such failure shall be detrimental to the school district. (Each case will be determined on its merits.)
- 9. If the employee has falsified any time sheet or time card to her/his benefit to receive a greater amount of pay.
- 10. If an employee is absent for one or more days at a time on two occasions and fails to notify the employer in advance.
- 11. The employer from time to time may post additional items provided a special conference is held with the Union on the items to be posted. It is further agreed that the employer shall notify the representatives of the Union when disciplinary action has been taken.

Accident	
Aid to Other Unions	2
American Arbitration Association	
Arbitration	
Attendance Incentive	
Automobile Usage	
Breaks	7
Building Facilities, Use of	
Bulletin Boards, Use of	
Bumping Rights	
Cafeteria Benefits	
Classification, New	
Classifications excluded	1
Classifications included	
COBRA, On Leave	11
COBRA, After Separation from District	10
College Tuition Reimbursement	10
Credit Union Deductions	
Demotion	
Dental Care Program	
Disability Insurance	
Discharge	
Disciplinary Reports	
Disciplinary Action	
Disciplinary Action, Cause for	
Doctor's Note	8
Duration	
Evaluation Reports	
Federal Wage Price Control	2
Flex Time	18
Freedom Of Information Act	
Fringe Benefits, Pro-rated	
Funeral Leave	
Grievance Procedure	12
Health Insurance, Self-paid	16
Holiday Overtime	7
Holidays	14
Holidays, During Vacation	14
Hospitalization	15
Hours, Summer	
Hours	
Immediate Family, definition	
Incentive, Sick Leave	
Inclement Weather	
Increase, Minimum	
Injury on the Job	
In-service Days	8
In-services Provided	
Insurance Benefits	
International Union Conferences/Conventions	
Involuntary Transfers	
Job Sharing	
Jury Duty Lateral Transfers	9
Law Savings Clause	
Layoff - Temporary Employees	
Layoff - Prior Notice Layoff - Probationary Employees	
Layoff	
Layon	

Leave of Absence - Illness (replacement)4
Leave of Absence - Maternity (replacement)4
Length of Agreement19
Life Insurance15
Lock Out18
Long Term Disability15
Longevity
Lunch Hour7
Management Rights1
Medical Insurance Coverage15
Michigan Public School Employee Retirement Act 17
Midwinter Break
Mileage Payments17
Military Leave
Minimum Increase
Modification of Agreement19
Notice of Appointment
Office Coverage
Optical Insurance
Oral Reprimand
Overtime
Overtime, Assigning of7
Paid Leave
Pay Schedule
Payments, Longevity16
Payroll Deduction17
Personal Leave, Unpaid11
Personal Leave Days8 Personal Illness
Personal file
Personnel File Review17
Physical Examination, Employment Continuation 18
Physician's Statement8
Postings
Prescription Rider
Pro-rated Fringe Benefits
Probationary Employees
Promotion, Denial5 Promotions4
Rate of Pay20
Recalls
Recognition1
Records Day8
Reductions
Retirement
Return from Unpaid Sick Leave (one year)10
Return from Unpaid Sick Leave (over one year)10
Review, Personnel File17
Rotation, short-term absences5
Rotation, vacation5
Salary Schedule
Saturday Overtime
Savings Bond Deductions17
Schedules
Seniority List
Seniority, Loss Of
Seniority, Unpaid Personal Leave11
Seniority, Unpaid Sick Leave10
Seniority
Severance Payment17

Short Term Leave	11
Sick Leave, Unpaid	10
Sick Leave, Immediate family	
Sick Leave	
Sick Leave Incentive	10
Snow Days	
Strike	
Subpoena	9
Summer Hours	8
Suspension	
Teamster's Grievance Panel	12
Temporary Transfers	5
Temporary Promotions	
Testing - In Case of Layoff	
Transfers, Lateral	
Transfers - Out of Union	5
Transfers	
Trial Period	
Tuition Reimbursement	
Union Security	
United Way Deductions	
Use of District Materials	17
Vacancies	
Vacation, Pro-rated	
Vacation, Death Benefits	
Vacation, Wages	
Vacation Days, Additional	
Vacations	
Wage Claim	
Work Week	
Work Stoppage	
Work Day	
Worker's Compensation	
Written Reprimand	6

Roseville Board of Education Teamsters Local 214 - Administrative Clerical Unit June 15, 2023

- 1. For 2023-2024, 2024-2025, and 2025-2026 all eligible employees will advance one (1) step on the salary schedule each year.
- 2. All steps will increase as follows:
 - a. 2023-2024 school year increase by 3.0%
 - i. Members will receive a 2% off schedule payment paid half (1/2) in January and half (1/2) in June.*
 - b. 2024-2025 school year increase by 3.0%
 - i. Members will receive a 2% off schedule payment paid half (1/2) in January and half (1/2) in June if there is a fund balance increase as determined by the fiscal year audit of the 2023/2024 school year.*
 - c. 2025-2026 school year increase by 3.0%
 - i. Members will receive a 2% off schedule payment paid half (1/2) in January and half (1/2) in June if there is a fund balance increase as determined by the fiscal year audit of the 2024/2025 school year.*

*Off schedule payment is based on contractual base salary.

- HSA Annual Stipend raised to \$650 single / \$850 couple-family annually. (Article XIV, Item B-2).
- 4. Dental: Annual maximum (for class I, II, & III services): increase maximum coverage by \$500 per member.
- 5. Perfect attendance incentive: increase to \$185 for each period. (Article IX, Item F)
- 6. Remove from contract: Personal leave may not be used in conjunction with vacation time. (Article IX, Section B, Subsection 4)
- 7. This contract shall be in full effect through June 30 of 2026. One limited item may be opened during this contract: Article XIV, Item B-2 Medical Benefits.